
        
 

316837 Highway 6, RR 1 
Chatsworth, Ontario N0H 1G0 

Telephone 519-794-3232 - Fax 519-794-4499 

 
July 16, 2020 
 
Township of Chatsworth  
Committee of Adjustment 
316837 Highway 6, R.R. 1 
CHATSWORTH, Ontario 
N0H 1G0 

 
Chair Mackey and Members of the Committee of Adjustment: 

 
Re:  Lot 26, Plan 16M-22  

 Geographic Village of Chatsworth, Township of Chatsworth 
 822753 Sideroad 1, Chatsworth 
 Owner: Bruce and Mariella Bourden     
  File No.:   A01/2020 
 

The following has been prepared to provide the Committee of Adjustment with planning 
comments concerning the above-noted matter: 
 
 
Background: 
 
The owners of the subject property are proposing to erect a shed measuring 6.096 metres x 
6.096 metres at a distance of 4.1 metres from the exterior side lot line of their property.  The 
‘R2’ zoning of their lot requires a minimum exterior side yard of 7.5 metres.  Relief from the 
Zoning By-law is therefore requested. 
 
 
Subject Lands: 

 
The subject property is located within the subdivision located in the northwest corner of the 
former Village of Chatsworth, and specifically situated at the northeast corner of the Sideroad 
1 / Sullivan Street intersection.  Situated on the property is a detached dwelling.  A concrete 
slab exists where the shed is proposed to be erected. 
 
 
Adjacent Lands: 

 
The subject property is situated within the new subdivision.  The residential lots to the west, 
north and east and now all occupied by detached dwellings.  A large number of residential 
lots also exist to the south of the subject lands, along the opposite side of Sideroad 1 and 
outside of the subdivision. 
 
 
Planning Act: 

 
When dealing with Minor Variances, the Committee of Adjustment must be satisfied that the 
request passes all four tests for Minor Variances set out in The Planning Act.  Failure to meet 
any of the tests should result in the application being refused.  In this regard, please consider 
the following: 
 
1. Does the variance maintain the intent and purpose of the Grey County Official 

Plan? 
 
Schedule A to the Grey County Official Plan designates the subject property, along 
with the rest of the urban area of Chatsworth, as ‘Secondary Settlement Area’.  The 
Official Plan does not contain policies pertaining to the finer details of development 



such as yard requirements.  As such, the proposed variance would not undermine the 
intent of the Official Plan. 
 

2. Does the variance maintain the intent and purpose of the Township of 
Chatsworth Zoning By-law? 

 
The purpose of the ‘exterior side yard’ requirement is the same as the purpose of the 
‘minimum front yard’, which is ensure that all buildings along any given street maintain 
a consistent setback and desirable streetscape.  In this particular case, there are no 
other residential dwellings facing Sullivan Street along the east side of this municipal 
road, as the house on the property to the north faces Mactay Drive.  In this regard, the 
variance would likely have a minimal impact, from a visual perspective, on the 
streetscape.  At the same time, the neighbour to the north has constructed a fence 
along the most of the property boundary, including along the Sullivan Street property 
boundary.  The presence of this fence would seem to lessen the visual impact of 
having the new shed 4.1 metres from the Sullivan Street road allowance. 
 
Based on the foregoing, the proposed variance would not likely be visually disruptive to 
the streetscape and therefore would generally maintain the intent and purpose of the 
Zoning By-law. 
 

3. Is the variance minor in nature? 
 
This test has traditionally been interpreted as meaning “what impact will the variance 
have on the neighbours?”  Based on the explanation provided above, it’s doubtful that 
the neighbours – specifically the property owner to the immediate north – would be 
impacted in any significant manner.  The variance should be considered minor in 
nature. 
 

4. Is the variance requested desirable for the appropriate and orderly development 
and use of the lands and buildings? 

 
In these particular circumstances, allowing for a 4.1 metre setback for a shed could be 
considered an appropriate and orderly development of the property. 
 

 
Provincial Policy Statement: 

 
Like the County of Grey Official Plan, the Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) does not attempt 
to control the finer details of development like lot line setbacks.  There are no matters of 
Provincial interest that would be affected by the applicant’s request to erect a detached 
dwelling closer to the street than permitted by the Zoning By-law.  It is evident that the 
proposed variance is consistent with the PPS. 
 
 
Conclusion and Recommendation: 
 

The proposed Minor Variance passes the four texts identified in Section 45 of the Planning 
Act and is consistent with the PPS.  As such, the application can be approved. 
 
This opinion is provided without the benefit of having received comments from any other 
agency or any adjacent land owners.  Should new information arise regarding this proposal, 
the Committee is advised to take such information into account when considering this 
application. 
 
I trust this information will be of assistance. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Ron Davidson, BES, RPP, MCIP 












